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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Hocking Technical College
3301 Hocking Parkway
Nelsonville, Ohio  45764

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Hocking 
Technical College, Athens County, (the College), and its discretely presented component unit, as of and for 
the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the College’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.   An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the business-type activities and the discretely presented component unit of 
Hocking Technical College, Athens County, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 3 to the financial statements, during 2013, the College adopted new accounting 
guidance in Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred 
Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and Statement No. 65, Items 
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.  We did not modify our opinion regarding these matters.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis on pages 4 through 11 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the 
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit 
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance. 

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the College’s basic financial statements.  The schedule of federal awards revenues and 
expenditures, as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a 
required part of the basic financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility of management and 
was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, 
the schedule of federal awards revenues and expenditures is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation 
to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 26,
2013 on our consideration of the College’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide on opinion on internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the College’s internal control over financial reporting 
and compliance.

Natalie Millhuff-Stang, CPA
President/Owner
Millhuff-Stang, CPA, Inc.

December 26, 2013
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
The discussion and analysis of Hocking Technical College’s (the College) financial statements provides an overview 
of the College’s financial activities for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013.  Management has prepared the financial 
statements and the related footnote disclosures along with the discussion and analysis.  Responsibility for the 
completeness and fairness of this information rests with the College’s management. 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of the reporting models adopted by the Governmental 
Accounting Standard Board (GASB) in their Statement No. 34 “Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments” and Statement No. 35 “Basic Financial Statements - and 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities.” Certain comparative information 
between the current year and the prior year is required to be presented in the MD&A.   
 
Using this Report 
 
This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements.  These statements are 
presented following the requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 and Statement No. 35, and are organized so the 
reader can understand the College as a financial whole, an entire operating entity.   
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the College’s basic financial statements.  The 
College’s basic financial statements are comprised of two components: the government-wide financial statements and 
notes to the basic financial statements. 
 
Financial Highlights 
          
The College’s financial position increased $2.2 million or 4.6% during the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013.  The 
current assets decreased $4.2 million or 22.2% from the previous Fiscal Year due primarily to a decrease in accounts 
receivables.  The capital assets decreased $0.8 million or 1.9% from the previous Fiscal Year due to depreciation 
expense and disposals exceeding acquisitions for the year.  The current liabilities decreased $1.0 million or 26.3% 
from the previous Fiscal Year due primarily to a decrease in accounts payables and other accrued liabilities. The 
long-term liabilities decreased $2.4 million or 82.8% from the previous Fiscal Year due primarily to principal payments 
made on notes payable and capital lease obligations.  
 
During the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2013, the College’s revenue and other support exceeded expenses creating 
an increase in net position of $2.2 million (the College experienced a $0.02 million increase in the previous Fiscal 
Year). 
 
The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 
 
One of the most important questions asked about the College’s finances is, “Is the College as a whole better off or 
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?”  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position report information on the College as a whole and on its activities in a way 
that helps answer this question.  When revenues and other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net 
position.  When the reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net position.  The relationship between revenues and 
expenses may be thought of as the College’s operating results. 
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These two statements report the College’s net position and changes in net position.  You can think of the difference 
between assets and liabilities as one way to measure the College’s financial health, or financial position.  Over time, 
increases or decreases in the College’s net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or 
deteriorating. 
 
You will need to consider many other nonfinancial factors, such as the trend in College applicants, student retention, 
condition of the buildings, and strength of the faculty, to assess the overall health of the College. 
 
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector institutions.  All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into 
account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 
 
The following is a comparative analysis of the major components of the net position of the College: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2013 2012
Increase 

(Decrease)
Percent 
Change

Current Assets $14.7 $18.9 ($4.2) (22.2%)

Noncurrent Assets:

  Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 41.9 42.7 (0.8) (1.9%)

  Other 4.4 1.2 3.2 266.7%

Total Assets $61.0 $62.8 ($1.8) (2.9%)

Current Liabilities $2.8 $3.8 ($1.0) (26.3%)

Long-Term Liabilities 0.5 2.9 (2.4) (82.8%)

Total Liabilities 3.3 6.7 (3.4) (50.7%)

Deferred Inflows of Resources 7.5 8.1 (0.6) (7.4%)

Net Assets:

  Net Investment in Capital Assets 41.4 39.9 1.5 3.8%

  Restricted - Nonexpendable 1.1 1.1 0.0 0.0

  Restricted - Expendable 0.5 0.6 (0.1) (16.7%)

  Unrestricted 7.2 6.4 0.8 12.5%

Total Net Assets $50.2 $48.0 $2.2 4.6%

Net Position as of June 30 (in millions)
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The following is a comparative analysis of the major revenue and expense categories of the College: 
 

2013 2012
Increase 

(Decrease)
Percent 
Change

Operating Revenues:

  Tuition and Fees $19.7 $22.1 ($2.4) (10.9%)

  Grants and Contracts 1.3 1.4 (0.1) (7.1%)

  Sales and Services of Departments 0.1 0.4 (0.3) (75.0%)

  Auxiliary Services 6.5 7.3 (0.8) (11.0%)

  Other Operating Revenue 0.3 0.4 (0.1) (25.0%)

Total Operating Revenues 27.9 31.6 (3.7) (11.7%)

Operating Expenses:

  Instructional and Departmental Research 23.2 26.1 (2.9) (11.1%)

  Public Service 0.0 0.1 (0.1) (100.0%)

  Academic Support 5.0 4.6 0.4 8.7%

  Student Services 3.8 4.4 (0.6) (13.6%)

  Institutional Support 4.2 3.9 0.3 7.7%

  Operational and Maintenance of Plant 2.8 2.7 0.1 3.7%

  Scholarships and Fellowships 8.8 9.5 (0.7) (7.4%)

Depreciation 1.6 1.5 0.1 6.7%

Auxiliary Services 6.5 7.7 (1.2) (15.6%)

Total Operating Expenses 55.9 60.5 (4.6) (7.6%)

Operating Income (Loss) (28.0) (28.9) 0.9 3.1%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

  Grants and Contracts 13.8 14.7 (0.9) (6.1%)

  State Appropriations 14.1 14.0 0.1 0.7%

  Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (0.1) (0.1) 0.0 0.0%

  Net Investment Income and Other 0.0 0.1 (0.1) (100.0%)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 27.8 28.7 (0.9) (3.1%)

Other Revenues (Expenses):

  Capital Appropriations 2.7 0.1 2.6 2600.0%

  Net Capital Grants, Gifts and Other (0.3) 0.1 (0.4) (400.0%)

Total Other Revenues 2.4 0.2 2.2 1100.0%

Increase in Net Position 2.2 0.0 2.2 0.0%

Net Position - Beginning of Year 48.0 48.0 0.0 0.0%

Net Position - End of Year $50.2 $48.0 $2.2 4.6%

Operating Results for the Year (in millions)
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Operating Revenues 
 
Operating revenues include all transactions that result from the sales of goods and services such as tuition and fees, 
educational department transactions and auxiliary service fees from Hocking Residence Hall, and operations of the 
College Bookstore and The Inn at Hocking College.  In addition, certain federal, state, and local grants are considered 
operating if they are not for capital purposes and are considered a contract for services. 
 
Operating revenue changes were primarily the result of the following factors: 
 

 Student tuition and fee revenue decreased $2.4 million or 10.9% and the decrease is primarily the result of 
decreased enrollment.  
 

 Auxiliary Services decreased by $0.8 million primarily due to a decrease in activity for the Inn at Hocking 
College and because of decreased enrollment. 

 
Operating Expenses 
 
Operating expenses are all the costs necessary to perform and conduct the programs and primary purposes of the 
College.  The operating expense changes were primarily the result of the following factors: 
 

 Scholarship and fellowship costs decreased $0.7 million or 7.4% primarily due to a decrease in Pell Grant 
funding, which coincides with the decrease in enrollment.  

 
 Auxiliary Services costs decreased $1.2 million or 15.6% due to a decrease in operation at the Inn at Hocking 

College and because of decreased enrollment. 
 

 Instructional and departmental research costs decreased $2.9 million or 11.1% due to decreased spending 
for salaries and benefits and a decrease in compensated absences. 

 
Nonoperating Revenues 
 
Nonoperating revenues are all revenue sources that are primarily nonexchange in nature.  They consist primarily of 
certain federal grants, State appropriations and investment income. 
 
Nonoperating revenue decreased as a result of decreased student financial aid awards due to the decrease in 
enrollment. 
 
Other Revenues 
 
Other revenues consist of items that are typically nonrecurring, extraordinary, or unusual to the College.  Examples 
are State of Ohio capital appropriations, and capital grants and gifts from local sources. 
 
The change in other revenues was primarily the result of an increase in Capital Appropriations from the State of Ohio 
due to the College receiving capital appropriation funds to pay off bonds associated with a previous construction 
project. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
 
Another way to assess the financial health of a College is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows.  Its primary 
purpose is to provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an entity during a period.   
The Statement of Cash Flows also helps users assess: 
 

 An entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows; 
 Its ability to meet its obligations as they come due; and 
 Its need for external financing. 

 
 

2013 2012
Increase 

(Decrease)
Percent 
Change

Net Cash From:
  Operating Activities ($26.4) ($27.1) $0.7 2.6%
  Noncapital Financing Activities 27.9 28.7 (0.8) (2.8%)
  Capital and Related Financing Activities (0.8) (1.3) 0.5 38.5%
  Investing Activities (0.2) 0.1 (0.3) (300.0%)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 0.5 0.4 0.1 25.0%
Cash - Beginning of Year 4.6 4.2 0.4 9.5%
Cash - End of Year $5.1 $4.6 $0.5 10.9%

Cash Flows for the Year (in millions)

 

The major sources of cash from operating activities are tuition and fees, grants and contracts and auxiliary service 
charges.  Cash outlays include payments for wages, benefits, supplies, utilities, contractual services, and 
scholarships and fellowships.  Overall, net cash from operating activities increased due to decreases in expenses 
exceeding decreases in revenues. 
 
State appropriations and certain federal grants are the primary sources of cash from noncapital financing activities.  
The reporting standards require that the College reflect these sources of revenue as nonoperating even though the 
budget of the College depends heavily on these sources to continue the current level of operations.  Federal grants 
decreased due to a decrease in authorized awards to students in addition to decreased enrollment. 
 
The major sources of cash from capital and related financing activities this year is from capital appropriations from the 
State of Ohio, while cash outlays include payments  for construction projects and other capital assets, and principal 
paid on the leases and notes that were incurred to acquire and construct these capital assets.  Net cash from capital 
and related financing activities increased due primarily to the increased capital appropriation received from the state. 
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets 
 
At June 30, 2013, the College had $41.9 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $24.2 
million.  Depreciation charges totaled $1.6 million for the current Fiscal Year.  Details of these assets for the past two 
years are shown below. 
 

2013 2012
Increase 

(Decrease)

Land $4.9 $5.0 ($0.1)

Construction in Progress 0.0 0.0 0.0

Land Improvements 1.2 1.3 (0.1)

Buildings and Improvements 33.2 33.8 (0.6)

Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 2.2 2.2 0.0

Vehicles/Fleet 0.4 0.4 0.0

Total $41.9 $42.7 ($0.8)

Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation as of June 30 (in millions)

 

The major capital additions this year were $0.2 million for new paving projects, $0.3 million for new equipment and 
$0.6 million for building projects during the year. 
 
More detailed information about the College’s capital assets is presented in the notes to the financial statements. 
 
Debt 
 
At June 30, 2013, the College had $0.5 million in debt outstanding versus $2.8 million the previous year.  The table 
below summarizes these amounts by type of debt instrument. 
 

2013 2012
Increase 

(Decrease)

Bond Anticipation Notes $0.0 $2.7 ($2.7)

Revenue Bonds 0.5 0.0 0.5

Lease Obligations 0.0 0.1 (0.1)

Total $0.5 $2.8 ($2.3)

Long - Term Debt Outstanding as of June 30 (in millions)

 

More detailed information about the College’s long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the financial statements. 
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Economic Factors That Will Affect the Future 
 
Revenue Streams 
The economic position of the College is closely tied to that of the State and the actions of the State Legislature. 
Tuition and Fees and State Appropriations (aka State Share of Instruction or SSI) together comprised 83.4% and 
82.4% of the College’s all unrestricted revenue for Fiscal Year 2013 and Fiscal Year 2012, respectively.  Both 
revenue streams are controlled by the State through tuition caps in the case of Tuition and Fees and by appropriation 
in terms of the amount set aside for SSI and further through the Board of Regents in terms of how that appropriation 
is distributed to the various Colleges and Universities.   
 
The State of Ohio’s biennial operating budget, approved by the State Legislature, limited tuition increases in Fiscal 
Year 2014 for two-year institutions to $100 for an academic year – one half of what was authorized in the previous 
biennial budget.  The College’s Board approved increasing the College’s tuition by $99 for an academic year 
beginning with the Autumn Semester. 
 
Appropriations for Fiscal Year 2014 began at $14,166,939 for the year until the impact of final Fiscal Year 2013 
numbers are completed in the Fall which will determine if that amount is adjusted upward or downward effective 
January 1 for the remainder of the Fiscal Year.  It represents a .794% increase over the prior Fiscal Year.  The 
increase into Fiscal Year 2013 was .116%.  Due to the complexity of the formula for distribution and due to the fact 
that the distribution is changing to have greater reliance on performance measures (Success Points) determined by 
the State and due to that fact that both enrollment and Success Points could improve without an increase in the 
amount of SSI, there is no way to anticipate a change to this revenue stream until the amount is published. 
 
In the Fall of 2013, the College is expected to announce its first ever major fundraising campaign, the completion of 
which is planned to coincide with the College’s 50th anniversary in Fiscal Year 2018.  This diversification of revenue 
streams is important to the College’s overall fiscal health. 
 
Enrollment   
In Fiscal Year 2013, in its first year of conversion from quarters to semesters, the College experienced a 17.1% 
reduction in full time equivalents (FTE) of student enrollment.  The decline in enrollment was experienced by most of 
the two-year institutions in Ohio who transitioned to semesters in Fiscal Year 2013.  The enrollment decline which 
began following the College’s peak enrollment in Fiscal Year 2010 continues into Fiscal Year 2014.  The College is 
engaging the services of an independent consultant in development of a strategic enrollment plan to assist the 
College in future growth in this enrollment and consistent with growth areas identified in the College’s overall Strategic 
Plan. 
 
Budgeting 
In response to continued enrollment declines, the College continues its practice of being swift and decisive in making 
budget adjustments downward in expenditure areas to compensate for this reduction in revenue.  In November, 2012 
the College instituted an involuntary reduction in force in order to balance its Fiscal Year 2013 budget.  The results of 
that reduction annualized and through other cost saving measures instituted in Fiscal Year 2013, it is not anticipated 
that another involuntary reduction in force will be necessary in Fiscal Year 2014.  At the same time that the College is 
taking steps to reduce its expenditures, the College has been diligent in adding to its strategic reserve, recognizing 
the need to build its expendable net position, even in times of declining revenues, for a healthier financial future. 
 
The College continues its efforts to increase transparency into its budgeting efforts and to expand responsibility and 
accountability over the budget.  The Budget Advisory Council, now in its 3rd year of operation, includes a cross-
section of employees of the College who meet two times each month to learn about and discuss College finances.  
Through its efforts a carry-forward policy, annual budget hearings and a comprehensive funding needs listing have 
been developed.  The budgeting process itself is evolving from an incremental to a zero-based budgeting approach.  
 
Debt 
In Fiscal Year 2013 the College paid off the balance of the Bond Anticipation Notes covering its Platinum Leed-
certified Energy Institute in Logan, Ohio through a combination of capital appropriations and operating funds.  As of 
June 30, the only outstanding debt of the College was approximately $500,000 of energy bonds issued through Ohio 
Air Quality in early Fiscal Year 2013 for various energy saving initiatives.   
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In Fiscal Year 2013, the College invited Moody’s Investors Service to campus to evaluate the College for its first ever 
bond rating in anticipation of a bond issuance in early Fiscal Year 2014 (Series 2013 Bonds).  The majority of the 
Series 2013 Bonds ($19.1 million) are intended to purchase two residence halls from the College’s related Foundation 
and retire the outstanding Series 2008 Certificates of Participation (“COPs”) on them.  The COPs are in variable rate 
mode with a JP Morgan Chase letter of credit which expired June 15, 2013, but was renewed to bridge the gap to the 
Series 2013 issuance.  Approximately $13 million of the Series 2008 COPs were swapped from variable to fixed rate 
with the swap set to expire July 1, 2013.The remainder of the bond issue is to cover the costs of a fire alarm system 
upgrade, an information technology infrastructure upgrade and to cover the costs of issuance.  Since the debt on the 
residence halls held by the Foundation was already considered in ratios calculated for the College’s accrediting body 
and by bond rating agencies, the Series 2013 issuance will serve to improve the College’s financial position by 
reducing interest rate risk and other complexities of the variable rate issuance.  The College received an A3 rating 
from Moody’s with a stable outlook and because the College was using the State’s Credit Enhancement program 
available to two-year institutions for the purpose of achieving better interest rates, the Series 2013 issuance was also 
issued an underlying rating of Aa2. 
 
The College has no immediate plans to issue additional debt beyond the Series 2013 issuance and is exploring all 
possible options for funding its needs that does not involve issuing further debt.  This has led the College to entertain 
some innovative funding strategies with private 3rd parties, but at this time the College has plans to wait and evaluate 
if an immediate funding gap exists after the outcome of current momentum around a Fiscal Year 2015 and Fiscal 
Year 2016 capital bill is known. 
 
In Summary 
The College believes that it is well positioned through a number of strategic initiatives, in place and being discussed, 
to ensure its continued success as it approaches its 50th anniversary in 2018.  From the ability to be swift and decisive 
in response to changes in revenues and expenditures, to its understanding of its financial position and the strategies 
needed to improve it, its ability to recognize the importance of new ideas seasoned with institutional 
memory/knowledge from its workforce and its understanding of the importance of its service to the district in which it 
exists, the College remains diligent in its efforts to meet the initiatives of the State of Ohio in educating Ohio’s 
workforce. 
 



HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2013

Component
Primary Unit

Institution Foundation
ASSETS:
  Current Assets:
    Cash and Cash Equivalents $4,988,987 $264,955
    Other Short-Term Investments 500,000 162,104
    Accounts Receivable, Net 7,952,171 4,135
    Intergovernmental Receivables 471,369 0
    Inventories 450,377 0
    Prepaid Expenses 290,010 0
      Total Current Assets 14,652,914 431,194

  Noncurrent Assets:
    Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 82,980 0
    Endowment Investments 1,156,314 439,006
    Other Long-Term Investments 3,148,735 0
    Nondepreciable Capital Assets 4,919,791 78,880
    Depreciable Capital Assets 37,026,764 20,596,068
      Total Noncurrent Assets 46,334,584 21,113,954
TOTAL ASSETS 60,987,498 21,545,148

LIABILITIES:
  Current Liabilities:
    Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities 1,735,103 5,513
    Deposits Held in Custody for Others 387,566 0
    Long-Term Liabilities - Current Portion 643,828 415,000
      Total Current Liabilities 2,766,497 420,513

  Long-Term Liabilities:
    Long-Term Liabilities 503,536 18,695,000
      Total Long-Term Liabilities 503,536 18,695,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,270,033 19,115,513

Deferred Inflows of Resources 7,480,153 4,890

NET POSITION:
  Net Investment in Capital Assets 41,427,512 1,564,948
  Restricted for:
    Nonexpendable:
      Endowments 1,156,314 439,006
    Expendable:
      Loans 34,070 0
      Scholarships 450,774 286,408
  Unrestricted 7,168,642 134,383
TOTAL NET POSITION $50,237,312 $2,424,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Component
Primary Unit

Institution Foundation
REVENUES:
  Operating Revenues:
    Student Tuition and Fees (Net of Scholarship Allowances of $5,921,300) $19,713,165 $0
    Federal Grants and Contracts 886,324 0
    State Grants and Contracts 112,166 0
    Local Grants and Contracts 251,287 0
    Sales and Services of Educational Departments 147,852 0
    Auxiliary Services Revenues (Net of Scholarship Allowances of $832,427) 6,522,339 0
    Other Operating Revenue 269,275 1,425,349
      Total Operating Revenues 27,902,408 1,425,349

EXPENSES:
  Operating Expenses:
    Educational and General:
      Instructional and Departmental Research 23,187,296 0
      Public Service 11,136 0
      Academic Support 4,993,158 0
      Student Services 3,835,238 0
      Institutional Support 4,166,382 0
      Operation and Maintenance of Plant 2,779,714 0
      Scholarships and Fellowships 8,834,386 0
    Depreciation 1,583,990 390,379
    Auxiliary Services 6,518,353 0
    Other Operating Expenses 0 355,752
      Total Operating Expenses 55,909,653 746,131

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (28,007,245) 679,218

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
  Federal Grants and Contracts 13,832,254 0
  State Appropriations 14,055,348 0
  Gifts 0 127,495
  Investment Income 83,033 26,148
  Interest on Capital Asset-Related Debt (125,233) (521,273)
  Bond Issuance Costs (58,702) 0
      Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 27,786,700 (367,630)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUES, EXPENSES, GAINS, OR LOSSES (220,545) 311,588

Capital Appropriations 2,665,554 0
Capital Grants and Gifts 94,505 0
Gain / (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets (329,340) 0

INCREASE IN NET POSITION 2,210,174 311,588

NET POSITION - Beginning of Year 48,027,138 2,113,157

NET POSITION - End of Year $50,237,312 $2,424,745

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Component
Primary Unit

Institution Foundation______________ ______________
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
  Tuition and Fees $22,077,947 $0
  Grants and Contracts 1,547,799 0
  Payments to Employees (34,105,078) 0
  Payments to Suppliers (3,472,743) 0
  Payments for Utilities (1,401,254) 0
  Payments for Contractual Services (4,027,978) 0
  Payments for Scholarships and Fellowships (8,832,401) 0
  Auxiliary Services Charges 5,605,350 0
  Sales and Services of Educational Departments 147,852 0
  Other Receipts 0 1,425,349
  Other Payments (3,910,941) (446,799)
      Net Cash from Operating Activities (26,371,447) 978,550

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Federal Grants and Contracts 13,832,254 0
  State Appropriations 14,055,348 0
  Gifts Received for Other Than Capital Purposes 0 127,478
      Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities 27,887,602 127,478

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
  Issuance of Capital Debt Received 535,043 0
  Capital Appropriations 2,665,554 0
  Capital Grants and Gifts Received 94,505 0
  Sale of Assets Received 3,740 0
  Purchases of Capital Assets (1,164,525) 0
  Principal Paid on Capital Debt and Leases (2,791,926) (521,747)
  Interest Paid on Capital Debt and Leases (125,233) (599,896)
  Issuance Costs on Capital Debt (58,702) 0
      Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (841,544) (1,121,643)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
  Interest on Investments 77,716 26,148
  Purchase of Investments (294,367) (77,393)
      Net Cash from Investing Activities (216,651) (51,245)

Net Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 457,960 (66,860)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, Beginning of year 4,614,007 331,815

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, End of year $5,071,967 $264,955
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HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Component
Primary Unit

Institution Foundation
Reconciliation of Net Operating Income (Loss) to 
  Net Cash from Operating Activities:
  Operating Income (Loss) ($28,007,245) $679,218

  Adjustments to Reconcile Net Operating Income (Loss) to 
    Net Cash from Operating Activities:
      Depreciation 1,583,990 390,379
      Change in Assets and Liabilities:
        Receivables, Net 2,108,972 0
        Inventories (129,035) 0
        Prepaid Expenses (90,201) 0
        Intergovernmental Receivable 298,022 0
        Accounts Payable and Other Accrued Liabilities (1,022,315) (91,047)
        Compensated Absences (261,806) 0
        Deferred Inflows of Resources (661,179) 0
        Deposits Held in Custody for Others (190,650) 0

Net Cash from Operating Activities ($26,371,447) $978,550

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-15-



HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  

 -16-

 NOTE 1 - DESCRIPTION OF THE COLLEGE AND REPORTING ENTITY  
 
A. Description of the College 
 

Hocking Technical College (the College) is a body politic and corporate established for the purpose of exercising 
the rights and privileges conveyed to it by the constitution and laws of the State of Ohio (the State). 

 
The College was formed after the creation of a technical college district, as defined in Chapter 3357 of the Ohio 
Revised Code.  The College operates under the direction of an appointed nine-member Board of Trustees.  Three 
members of this board are appointed by the Governor of the State.  The remaining six members are appointed by 
a caucus of the county, city and exempted village school districts' boards of education that operate in the 
technical college district.  A President is appointed by the Board of Trustees to oversee day-to-day operations of 
the College.  An appointed Vice-President of Financial Services is the custodian of funds and investment officer, 
and is also responsible for the fiscal controls of the resources of the College which are maintained in the funds 
described below. 

 
The College is an institution of higher learning dedicated to providing the residents of the technical college district 
with a low-cost higher education in various academic and vocational technologies, leading to a two-year 
associate degree. 

 
B. Reporting Entity 
 

The reporting entity is comprised of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are 
included to ensure that the financial statements of the College are not misleading.  The primary government 
consists of all funds, departments, boards, and agencies that are not legally separate from the College.   

 
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the College is financially accountable.  The College 
is financially accountable for an organization if the College appoints a voting majority of the organization's 
governing board and (1) the College is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or 
provided by the organization; or (2) the College is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization's 
resources; the College is legally obligated or has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, 
or provide financial support to, the organization; or the College is obligated for the debt of the organization.  
Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally dependent on the College in that the College 
approves the budget, the issuance of debt, or the levying of taxes. 

 
The Hocking College Foundation, Inc. (the Foundation), is not a part of the primary government of the College, 
but due to its relationship with the College, it is discretely presented as a component unit within the College's 
financial statements.  The Foundation is a nonprofit corporation fund-raising organization, dedicated solely to 
raising scholarships and other funds for the benefit of the College.  Specific disclosures relating to the component 
unit can be found in Note 17. 

 
The Southeast Ohio Probation Treatment Alternative Center (SEPTA) is a legally separate organization, but only 
the assets being held and a corresponding liability are included in the financial statements, since the College acts 
only as fiscal agent for them. 

 
 The College is not considered to be a component unit of the State. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
A. Basis of Accounting and Presentation 
 

The financial statements of the College have been prepared using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when 
they have been reduced to a legal or contractual obligation to pay, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including Statement No. 34, Basic 
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and  
Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges 
and Universities, issued in June and November, 1999.  The College follows the "business-type activities" 
reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 34 that provides a comprehensive one-column look at the 
financial activities of the College. 

 
The College maintains separate accounting records for several funds, to help assure proper accountability over 
financial resources restricted to the respective funds.  Management has consolidated these funds in these 
financial statements. 

 
B. Budgetary Process 
 

The budget is an annual plan for the financial operations of the College that establishes a basis of control and 
evaluation of activities financed through the current funds of the College.  Formal adoption of the budget into the 
accounting records is not legally mandated and thus, the College does not integrate the budget into its accounts. 

 
C. Appropriations 
 

To provide control over expenditures, a budget is prepared by the Vice-President of Finanical Services with input 
from other administrative staff and presented to the Board of Trustees for their approval near the beginning of the 
fiscal year.  To account for major developments that occur during the first six months, a revised budget may be 
prepared and presented to the Board for their approval in January of the same fiscal year. 

 
D.  Encumbrances 
 

The College utilizes an encumbrance system of accounting to record purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments for materials or services as a measure of budgetary control over appropriations.  Encumbrances 
outstanding at June 30, 2013 do not constitute expenses or liabilities and are not reflected in the financial 
statements. 
 

E.  Cash and Investments 
 

To improve cash management, all cash received by the College is pooled in a central bank account, except for 
the cash received for The Inn at Hocking College and Hocking College Foundation, Inc., which are held 
separately from the cash management pool of the College.  For internal control and accountability purposes, 
individual fund integrity is maintained through the College records.  During fiscal year 2013, investments were 
limited to certificates of deposit with local institutions and money market funds.  
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 
 

The College makes investments in accordance with the Board of Trustees' policy, which conforms to the authority 
granted in the Ohio Revised Code.  The purchase of specific investment instruments is at the discretion of the 
College's Vice-President of Financial Services within these policy guidelines.   

 
Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted 
market prices.  Nonparticipating investment contracts such as repurchase agreements and nonnegotiable 
certificates of deposit are reported at cost. 

 
For purposes of the presentation on the Statement of Net Position, investments of the cash management pool or 
investments with a maturity of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the College are considered 
to be cash equivalents. 

 
F.  Accounts Receivables 
 

Receivables at June 30, 2013 consist primarily of student tuition and fees, and auxiliary sales and services.  
Receivables are reported at net using the direct write-off method. 

 
G.  Inventory 
 

Inventories consist primarily of books and supplies of the bookstore and the warehouse stores inventories which 
are stated at the lower of cost or market determined on the first-in-first-out (FIFO) basis. 

 
H.  Capital Assets  
 

Capital assets with a unit cost of over $5,000 are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or if donated, at fair 
market value at the date of donation.  The College has no significant infrastructure assets.  Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset and is not allocated to the 
functional expense categories.  Expenses for construction in progress are capitalized as incurred.  Interest 
expense relating to construction is capitalized net of interest income earned on resources set aside for this 
purpose.  

 
Asset Description 

 Estimated 
Useful Life 

(Years) 

Land Improvements  5 

Buildings and Improvements  20-50 

Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment  5-15 

Vehicles/Fleet  3-5 

 
I.  Compensated Absences 
 

The College records a liability for sick leave and vacation when the obligation is attributable to services previously 
rendered, to rights that vest or accumulate, and where payment of the obligation is probable and can be 
reasonably determined.    
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

 
J.  Pensions 
 

The provision for pension costs is recorded when the related payroll is accrued and the obligation is incurred. 
 
K.  Operating and Nonoperating Revenues 
 

All revenues from programmatic sources are considered to be operating revenues.  Included in nonoperating 
revenues are certain federal grants and contracts, state appropriations, investment income, and gifts. 

 
L.  Scholarship Allowances and Student Aid 
 

Financial aid to students is reported in the financial statements under the alternative method as prescribed by the 
National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO).  Certain aid such as loans, funds 
provided to students as awarded by third parties, and Federal Direct Lending is accounted for as a third party 
payment (credited to the student's account as if the student made the payment).  All other aid is reflected in the 
financial statements as operating expenses, or scholarship allowances, which reduces revenues.  The amount 
reported as operating expense represents the portion of aid that was provided to the student in the form of 
reduced tuition.  Under the alternative method, these amounts are computed on a cash basis by allocating the 
cash payments to students, excluding payments for services, on the ratio of total aid to the aid not considered to 
be third party aid. 

 
M.  Federal Financial Assistance Programs 
 

The College participates in federally funded Pell Grants, SEOG Grants, Federal Work-Study, Federal Direct 
Lending, and various other federal programs.  Federal programs are audited in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996, the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Revised Circular A-133, Audit of States, 
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations, and the OMB Compliance Supplement. 

  
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the College processed $27,180,679 for direct lending through the 
U.S. Department of Education, which is not included as revenues and expenses on the accompanying financial 
statements. 

 
N.  Net Position 
 

GASB Statement No. 34 reports equity as "net position" rather than "fund balance."  Net position is classified 
according to external donor restrictions or availability of assets for satisfying obligations of the College.  
Expendable restricted net position represent funds that have been gifted for specific purposes and funds held in 
federal and state programs. 

 
When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, 
the policy of the College is to first apply restricted resources. 

 
The unrestricted net position balance of $7,168,642 at June 30, 2013 includes $796,508 held for auxiliary 
services. 
 

O.  Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements 
and accompanying notes.  Actual results may differ from those estimates. 
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES – Continued 

 
P.  Restricted Assets 
 
Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the normal understanding of the availability of 
the asset.  Such constraints are either imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors or laws of other governments or 
imposed by enabling legislation.  As of June 30, 2013, the College reported $82,980 of restricted assets, which is the 
remaining portion of the air quailty bond proceeds which are to be used for facility upgrades. 
 
NOTE 3 – NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
For fiscal year 2013, the College implemented GASB Statement No. 60, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Service Concession Arrangements”, GASB Statement No. 61, “The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus”, GASB 
Statement No. 62, “Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 
1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements,” GASB Statement No. 63, “Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of 
Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position,” and GASB Statement No. 65, “Items Previously 
Reported as Assets and Liabilities”.   
 
GASB Statement No. 60 improves financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession agreements, 
which are a type of public-private or public-public partnership.  The implementation of GASB Statement No. 60 had no 
effect on the financial statements of the College. 
 
GASB Statement No. 61 improves financial reporting for a government financial reporting entity.  The requirements of 
GASB Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 34, were amended to better meet user needs and to address 
reporting entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements.  The implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 61 had no effect on the financial statements of the College. 
 
GASB Statement No. 62 incorporates into the GASB’s authoritative literature certain accounting and financial 
reporting guidance that is included in the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which 
does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: (1) Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Statements and Interpretations, (2) Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and (3) Accounting Research Bulletins of 
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ (AICPA) Committee on Accounting Procedure.  The 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 62 had no effect on the financial statements of the College. 
 
GASB Statement No. 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and net position.  Concepts Statements No. 4, “Elements of Financial Statements,” introduced and defined 
those elements as consumption of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an 
acquisition of net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively.  Previous 
financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are 
distinct from assets and liabilities.  The statement has been implemented into the College’s 2013 financial statements 
but had no effect on beginning net position. 
 
GASB Statement No. 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities 
and recognizes, as outflows of resources and inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as 
assets and liabilities.  The statement has been implemented into the College’s 2013 financial statements but had no 
effect on beginning net position. 
 



HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  

 -21-

NOTE 4 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
State statutes classify monies held by the College into three categories. 
 
Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the treasury.  Such monies must be 
maintained either as cash in the College treasury, in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, 
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts. 
 
Inactive deposits are public deposits that the College has identified as not required for use within the current five year 
period of designation of depositories.  Inactive deposits must either be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing 
not later than the end of the current period of designation of depositories, or by savings or deposit accounts including, 
but not limited to, passbook accounts. 
 
Interim deposits are public deposits which are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end 
of the current period of designation of depositories.  Interim deposits must be evidenced by time certificates of deposit 
maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit, or by savings or deposit accounts including passbook 
accounts. 
 
Public depositories must give security for all public funds on deposit.  These institutions may either specifically 
collateralize individual accounts in lieu of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), or 
may pledge a pool of government securities equal to at least 105% of the total value of public funds on deposit at the 
institution.  Repurchase agreements must be secured by the specific government securities upon which the 
repurchase agreements are based.  These securities must be obligations of or guaranteed by the United States and 
mature or be redeemable within five years of the date of the related repurchase agreement.  State law does not 
require security for public deposits and investments to be maintained in the College's name.  During fiscal year 2013, 
the College complied with the provisions of these statutes.  
 
Interim monies are permitted to be deposited or invested in the following securities: 
 
 a. United States Treasury Notes, Bills, Bonds, or other obligations or securities issued by the United States 

Treasury, or any other obligations guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States; 
 
 b. Bonds, notes, debentures, or other obligations or securities issued by any federal government agency or 

instrumentality, including but not limited to, the Federal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan 
Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Government National 
Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketing Association.  All federal agency securities shall be 
direct issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities; 

 
 c. Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the fair value of the securities 

subject to the repurchase agreement exceeds the principal value of the agreement by at least two percent 
and be marked to fair value daily, and that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;  

 
 d. Bonds and other obligations of the State; 
 
 e. No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described in division (a) or (b) of 

this section and repurchase agreements secured by such obligations, provided that investments in securities 
described in this division are made only through eligible institutions; and 

 
 f.  The State Treasurer's investment pool (STAR Ohio). 
 
Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements and derivatives are 
prohibited.  The issuance of taxable notes for arbitrage, the use of leverage and short selling are also prohibited. Any 
investments must mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific obligation or debt of 
the College, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be held to maturity. 
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NOTE 4 - CASH AND INVESTMENTS – Continued 

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions.  Payment for investments may be made 
only upon delivery of the securities representing the investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the 
securities are not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the custodian. 
 
The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB Statement No. 
3, "Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements" and GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures". 
 
Deposits:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College's deposits may not be 
returned.  All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value 
of the deposits.  Such collateral, as permitted by the Ohio Revised Code, is held in single financial institution collateral 
pools at Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the federal reserve system, in the name of the respective 
depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public deposits it holds or as specific collateral 
held at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of the College.  
 
At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of all College deposits was $9,877,016.  Based on the criteria described in 
GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures", as of June 30, 2013, the College's bank 
balance of $10,535,092 was either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized with pooled 
securities held by the pledging financial institution in the manner described above. 
 
Investments:  As of June 30, 2013, the College had no investments. 
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 
 

Balance at   
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions

Balance at 
June 30, 2013

Nondepreciable Captial Assets:

   Land $4,953,031 $0 ($33,240) $4,919,791

Total Nondepreciable Capital Assets 4,953,031 0 (33,240) 4,919,791

Depreciable Capital Assets:

   Land Improvements 4,521,652 214,037 0 4,735,689

   Buildings and Improvements 48,595,482 621,931 (335,000) 48,882,413

   Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment 5,684,068 276,566 (6,595) 5,954,039

   Vehicles/Fleet 1,767,181 51,991 (119,708) 1,699,464

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 60,568,383 1,164,525 (461,303) 61,271,605

Total Cost of Capital Assets 65,521,414 1,164,525 (494,543) 66,191,396

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

   Land Improvements (3,207,259) (276,554) 0 (3,483,813)

   Buildings and Improvements (14,815,927) (920,404) 54,104 (15,682,227)

   Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment (3,481,770) (301,241) 5,606 (3,777,405)

   Vehicles/Fleet (1,317,358) (85,791) 101,753 (1,301,396)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (22,822,314) (1,583,990) 161,463 (24,244,841)

Capital Assets, Net $42,699,100 ($419,465) ($333,080) $41,946,555
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS – Continued 
 
The College’s capital assets include the costs of the $3,225,964 project to construct an Energy Institute facility.  This 
facility will be used for educational and developmental purposes and will support alternative energy technology 
programs, fuel cell technology programs, and vehicular hybrid programs.  Funding for this project includes an 
Economic Development Administration federal grant of $1,612,982 and matching funding from the College in the 
same amount.  The source of the College’s matching amount was a $3,000,000 Bond Anticipation Note issued in 
September 2007. The agreement for this grant funding includes a stipulation that if the College decides to use this 
facility in a different manner other than for alternative energy projects or decides to sell the facility within a 20 year 
period, this grant will become a mortgage and the entire amount will have to be repaid to the U.S. Department of 
Commerce.  As long as the College uses this facility for its intended purpose for at least 20 years, the College is not 
obligated to repay any amount of this grant.  The College has not reported a liability for this agreement since no 
obligation to repay exists at June 30, 2013. 
 
NOTE 6 - TERM-ENDOWMENTS 
 
In 1987, the College was awarded $446,499 from the U.S. Department of Education to create a term endowment 
(Corpus I).  The stipulation to receiving this award was that the College had to match this grant dollar for dollar and 
the corpus as well as interest earned on the corpus must be preserved for 20 years.  In 1989, the College was 
awarded an additional $193,313 from the U.S. Department of Education (Corpus II) with the same stipulation.   
 
As of June 30, 2013, the 20 year term has ended for both of the endowments, and therefore the total principal and 
interest earnings of $3,329,033 is released from restriction and reflected as unrestricted net position on the Statement 
of Net Position.  
 
NOTE 7 - STATE SUPPORT 
 
The College is a state-assisted institution of higher education which receives a student based subsidy from the State.  
This subsidy is determined annually based upon a formula devised by the Ohio Board of Regents.  
 
In addition to the student subsidies, the State provides the funding and constructs major plant facilities on the 
College's campus.  The funding is obtained from the issuance of special obligation bonds by the Ohio Public Facilities 
Commission (OPFC), which in turn causes the construction and subsequent lease of the facility by the Ohio Board of 
Regents.  Upon completion of a facility, the Board of Regents turns over control to the College, which capitalizes the 
cost thereof.  Neither the obligation for the special obligation bonds issued by the Ohio Public Facilities Commission 
nor the annual debt service charges for principal and interest on the bonds are reflected in the financial statements of 
the College.  These are currently being funded through appropriations to the Ohio Board of Regents by the Ohio 
General Assembly. 
 
The facilities are not pledged as collateral for the special obligation bonds.  Instead, the bonds are supported by a 
pledge of monies in the Higher Education Bond Service Fund established in the custody of the Treasurer of the State.  
If sufficient monies are not available from this fund, a pledge exists to assess a special student fee uniformly 
applicable to students in state-assisted institutions of higher education throughout the state.  As a result of the above 
described financial assistance provided by the State to the College, outstanding debt issued by the Ohio Public 
Facilities Commission is not included on the Statement of Net position of the College.  In addition, appropriations by 
the Ohio General Assembly to the Ohio Board of Regents for payment of debt service charges are not reflected in the 
appropriations received by the College, and the related debt service payments are not recorded in the accounts of the 
College. 
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 
 
Long-term liabilities of the College consist of lease obligations, bond anticipation notes, a revenue bond, and 
compensated absences payable.  The change in long-term liabilities are as shown below: 
 

Balance at 
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions

Balance at 
June 30, 2013

Due Within 
One Year

Leases and Notes Payable:

   Lease Obligations; 5.75 - 6.25% $76,152 $0 $76,152 $0 $0

   Bond Anticipation Notes; 4.24% 2,699,774 0 2,699,774 0 0

   Tax Exempt Revenue Bond; 3.07% 0 535,043 16,000 519,043 44,165

Total Leases and Notes Payable 2,775,926 535,043 2,791,926 519,043 44,165

Other Liabilities:

   Compensated Absences Payable 890,678 710,412 972,769 628,321 599,663

Total Other Liabilities 890,678 710,412 972,769 628,321 599,663

Total Long-Term Liabilities $3,666,604 $1,245,455 $3,764,695 $1,147,364 $643,828

The College issued a bond anticipation note in the amount of $3,000,000 at 4.24% interest dated September 7, 2007 
for the purpose of designing, constructing and equipping a building to house the Hocking Energy Institute’s energy 
technology center.  The note was fully retired on May 28, 2013. 
 
The College issued an Ohio Air Quality tax exempt revenue bond in the amount of $535,043 at 3.07% interest dated 
August 31, 2012 for the acquisition, construction and installation of energy related projects at the main campus in 
Nelsonville.  Principal is due and payable annually on December 1st. Interest is due and payable semi-annually on 
December 1st and June 1st.  The debt matures on December 1, 2022. 
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NOTE 8 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES – Continued 
 
The annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 

Year Ended     
June 30 Principal Interest

2014 $44,165 $15,243

2015 46,520 13,836

2016 47,948 12,386

2017 49,420 10,892

2018 50,938 9,351

2019 - 2023 280,052 21,941

Total Payments $519,043 $83,649

Tax Exempt Revenue Bonds

 
NOTE 9 - CAPITAL LEASES - LESSEE DISCLOSURES  
 
The College is obligated under certain leases that are accounted for as capital leases.  These leases met the criteria 
of a capital lease as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, "Accounting for Leases," which 
defines a capital lease generally as one which transfers benefits and risks of ownership to the lessee. 
 
Capital assets acquired by lease have been capitalized in the Statement of Net Position in the amount of $339,480.  
Principal payments in fiscal year 2013 totaled $76,152.  During fiscal year 2013, the  capital lease obligations were 
fully retired for maintenance equipment for the main campus. 
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NOTE 10 - OPERATING LEASES 
 
The College leases dormitory buildings and appurtenances from The Hocking College Foundation, Inc.  The lease for 
the Hocking Heights Dormitory is a noncancelable lease which expires March 1, 2062. Monthly rental through and 
including April 2013 is $12,318.  There is no base rental due after April 2013.  The lease for two other dormitories is 
also a noncancelable lease.  Annual payments are due in the amount of the debt service requirements of the 
Foundation.  The following is a schedule of minimum lease payments under the operating lease together with interest:  
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending

Student        
Housing

2014 $1,180,719

2015 1,184,182

2016 1,188,182

2017 1,192,419

Total Payments $4,745,502

 
 
NOTE 11- DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
School Employees Retirement System 
 
Plan Description - The College contributes to the School Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS), a cost-
sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan.  SERS provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits, 
annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Authority to establish and 
amend benefits is provided by Chapter 3309 of the Ohio Revised Code.  SERS issues a publicly available, stand-
alone financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information.  That report can be 
obtained on SERS’ website at www.ohsers.org under Employers/Audit Resources. 
 
Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 10 percent of their annual covered salary and the College 
is required to contribute 14 percent of annual covered payroll.  The contribution requirements of plan members and 
employers are established and may be amended, up to a statutory maximum amounts, by the SERS’ Retirement 
Board.  The Retirement Board acting with the advice of the actuary, allocates the employer contribution rate among 
four of the funds (Pension Trust Fund, Death Benefit Fund, Medicare B Fund, and Health Care Fund) of the System.   
 
For the fiscal years ending June 30, 2013, the allocation to pension and death benefits is 13.10 percent.  The 
remaining 0.90 percent of the 14 percent employer contribution rate is allocated to the Health Care and Medicare B 
Funds.  The College's contributions to SERS for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were 
$958,915, $883,954, and $930,877, respectively; 100 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2013, 2012 and 
2011. 
 
State Teachers Retirement System 
 
The College participates in the State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system.  
 
STRS Ohio is a statewide retirement plan for licensed teachers and other faculty members employed in the public 
schools of Ohio or any school, community school, college, university, institution or other agency controlled, managed 
and supported, in whole or in part, by the state or any political subdivision thereof. 
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NOTE 11- DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 

Plan Options - New members have a choice of three retirement plans options. In addition to the Defined Benefit (DB) 
Plan, new members are offered a Defined Contribution (DC) Plan and a Combined Plan.  The DC Plan allows 
members to allocate all their member contributions and employer contributions equal to 10.5 percent of earned 
compensation among various investment choices.  The Combined Plan offers features of both the DC Plan and the 
DB Plan.  In the Combined Plan, member contributions are allocated to investment choices by the member, and 
employer contributions are used to fund the defined benefit payment at a reduced level from the regular DB Plan.  
Contributions into the DC Plan and the Combined Plan are credited to member accounts as employers submit their 
payroll information to STRS Ohio, generally on a biweekly basis.  DC and Combined Plan members transfer to the DB 
Plan during their fifth year of membership unless they permanently select the DC or Combined Plan. 
 
DB Plan Benefits – Plan benefits are established under Chapter 3307 of the Revised Code.  Any member may retire 
who has (i) five years of service credit and attained age 60; (ii) 25 years of service credit and attained age 55; or (iii) 
30 years of service credit regardless of age.  The annual retirement allowance, payable for life, is the greater of the 
“formula benefit” or the “money-purchase benefit” calculation.  Under the “formula benefit,” the retirement allowance is 
based on years of credited service and final average salary, which is the average of the member’s three highest 
salary years.  The annual allowance is calculated by using a base percentage of 2.2% multiplied by the total number 
of years of service credit (including Ohio-valued purchased credit) times the final average salary.  The 31st year of 
earned Ohio service credit is calculated at 2.5%.  An additional one-tenth of a percent is added to the calculation for 
every year of earned Ohio service over 31 years (2.6% for 32 years, 2.7% for 33 years and so on) until 100% of final 
average salary is reached.  For members with 35 or more years of Ohio contributing service, the first 30 years will be 
calculated at 2.5% instead of 2.2%.  Under the “money-purchase benefit” calculation, a member’s lifetime 
contributions plus interest at specified rates are matched by an equal amount from other STRS Ohio funds.  This total 
is then divided by an actuarially determined annuity factor to determine the maximum annual retirement allowance. 
 
DC Plan Benefits – Benefits are established under Sections 3307.80 to 3307.89 of the Revised Code.  For members 
who select the DC Plan, all member contributions and employer contributions at a rate of 10.5% are placed in an 
investment account.  The member determines how to allocate the member and employer money amount various 
investment choices.  A member is eligible to receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termination of employment.  
The member may elect to receive a lifetime monthly annuity or a lump-sum withdrawal.  Employer contributions into 
members’ accounts are vested after the first anniversary of the first day of paid service.  Members in the DC Plan who 
become disabled are entitled only to their account balance.  If a member dies before retirement benefits begin, the 
member’s designated beneficiary is entitled to receive the member’s account balance. 
 
Combined Plan Benefits – Member contributions are allocated by the member, and employer contributions are used 
to fund a defined benefit payment.  A member’s defined benefit is determined by multiplying 1% of the member’s final 
average salary by the member’s years of service credit.  The defined benefit portion of the Combined Plan payment is 
payable to a member on or after age 60.  The defined contribution portion of the account may be taken as a lump sum 
or converted to a lifetime monthly annuity at age 50. 
 
Eligible faculty of Ohio’s public colleges and universities may choose to enroll in either STRS Ohio or an alternative 
retirement plan (ARP) offered by their employer.  Employees have 120 days from their employment date to select a 
retirement plan. 
 
A retiree of STRS Ohio or another Ohio public retirement system is eligible for re-employment as a teacher following 
the elapse of two months from the date of retirement.  Contributions are made by the re-employed member and 
employer during the re-employment.  Upon termination of re-employment or age 65, whichever comes later, the 
retiree is eligible for an annuity benefit or equivalent lump-sum payment in addition to the original retirement 
allowance.  A re-employed retiree may alternatively receive a refund of only member contributions with interest before 
age 65, once employment is terminated.   
 
Benefits are increased annually by 3% of the original base amount for DB Plan participants. 
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NOTE 11- DEFINED BENEFIT RETIREMENT PLANS – Continued 
 
The DB and Combined Plans offer access to healthcare coverage to eligible retirees who participated in the plans and 
their eligible dependents.  Coverage under the current program includes hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription 
drugs and partial reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums.  By Ohio law, health care benefits are not 
guaranteed. 
 
A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more years’ credited service who becomes disabled may qualify for a 
disability benefit.  Eligible spouses and dependents of members who die before retirement may qualify for survivor 
benefits.  A death benefit of $1,000 is payable to the beneficiary of each deceased retired member who participated in 
the DB Plan.  Death benefit coverage up to $2,000 can be purchased by participants in the DB, DC or Combined 
Plans.  Various other benefits are available to members’ beneficiaries. 
 
Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for member and employer contributions. 
Contribution rates are established by State Teachers Retirement Board, upon recommendation of its consulting 
actuary, not to exceed statutory maximum rates of 10 percent for members and 14 percent for employers.   
 
Contribution requirements and the contributions actually made for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, were 10% of 
covered payroll for members and 14% for employers.  The College’s required contributions for pension obligations to 
STRS Ohio for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $2,239,094, $2,344,042 and $2,447,343, 
respectively; 91.63 percent has been contributed for fiscal year 2013 and 100 percent for the fiscal years 2012 and 
2011.  Member and employer contributions actually made for DC and Combined Plan participants will be provided 
upon written request. 
 
STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report.  Copies of STRS Ohio’s 2012 Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report are available. 
 
Additional information or copies of STRS Ohio’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report can be requested by writing 
to the STRS Ohio, 275 East Broad Street, Columbus, Ohio  43215-3771, by calling toll-free 1-888-227-7787, or by 
visiting the STRS Ohio Web site at www.strsoh.org. 
 
NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS      
  
School Employees Retirement System 
 
Postemployment Benefits – In addition to a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit pension plan the School 
Employees Retirement System of Ohio (SERS) administers two postemployment benefit plans. 
  
Medicare Part B Plan - The Medicare Part B Plan reimburses Medicare Part B premiums paid by eligible retirees and 
beneficiaries as set forth in Ohio Revised Code (ORC) 3309.69.  Qualified benefit recipients who pay Medicare Part B 
premiums may apply for and receive a monthly reimbursement from SERS.  The reimbursement amount is limited by 
statute to the lesser of the January 1, 1999 Medicare Part B premium or the current premium.  The Medicare Part B 
monthly premium for calendar year 2013 was $104.90 for most participants, but could be as high as $335.70 per 
month depending on their income.  SERS’ reimbursement to retirees was $45.50. 
 
The Retirement Board, acting with advice of the actuary, allocates a portion of the current employer contribution rate 
to the Medicare B Fund.  For 2013, this actuarially required allocation is 0.74.  The College’s contributions for 
Medicare Part B for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $54,626, $52,202 and $59,904, 
respectively; 100 percent for the fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011. 
 
Health Care Plan – ORC 3309.375 and 3309.69 permit SERS to offer health care benefits to eligible retirees and 
beneficiaries.  SERS’ Retirement Board reserves the right to change or discontinue any health plan or program.  
SERS offers several types of health plans from various vendors, including HMOs, PPOs, Medicare Advantage and 
traditional indemnity plans.  A prescription drug program is also available to those who elect health coverage. SERS 
employs two third-party administrators and a pharmacy benefit manager to manage the self-insurance and 
prescription drug plans, respectively. 
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NOTE 12 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS – Continued 
 
The ORC provides the statutory authority to fund SERS’ postemployment benefits through employer contributions.  
Active members do not make contributions to the postemployment benefit plans. 
 
The Health Care Fund was established under, and is administered in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 
105(e).  Each year after the allocation for statutorily required benefits, the Retirement Board allocates the remainder 
of the employer 14 percent contribution to the Health Care Fund.  For the year ended June 30, 2013, the health care 
allocation is 0.16 percent.  An additional health care surcharge on employers is collected for employees earning less 
than an actuarially determined minimum compensation amount, pro-rated according to service credit earned.  Statute 
provides that no employer shall pay a health care surcharge greater than 2 percent of that employer’s SERS-covered 
payroll; nor may SERS collect in aggregate more than 1.5 percent of the total statewide SERS-covered payroll for the 
health care surcharge.  For fiscal year 2013, the minimum compensation level was established at $20,525.  The 
surcharge, added to the unallocated portion of the 14 percent employer contribution rate is the total amount assigned 
to the Health Care Fund.  The College’s contributions assigned to health care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 
2013, 2012, and 2011 were $65,880, $38,281 and $112,714, respectively; 100 percent for the fiscal years 2013, 2012 
and 2011. 
 
The SERS Retirement Board establishes the rules for the premiums paid by the retirees for health care coverage for 
themselves and their dependents or for their surviving beneficiaries.  Premiums vary depending on the plan selected, 
qualified years of service, Medicare eligibility, and retirement status.  The financial reports of SERS’ Health Care and 
Medicare B plans are included in its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  The report can be obtained on SERS’ 
website at www.ohsers.org under Employers/Audit Resources. 
 
State Teachers Retirement System 
 
Plan Description – State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio (STRS Ohio) administers a pension plan that is 
comprised of: a Defined Benefits Plan, a self-directed Defined Contribution Plan, and a Combined Plan that is a 
hybrid of the Defined Benefits Plan and the Defined Contribution Plan.  Ohio law authorizes STRS Ohio to offer a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer health care plan.  STRS Ohio provides access to health care coverage to eligible 
retirees who participated in the Defined Benefit or Combined Plans. Coverage under the current program includes 
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescription drugs and reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part B premiums.  
 
Pursuant to Chapter 3307 of the Revised Code, the Retirement Board has discretionary authority over how much, if 
any, of the associated health care costs will be absorbed by STRS Ohio.  All health care plan enrollees, for the most 
recent year, pay a portion of the health care costs in the form of a monthly premium.  The College’s contributions for 
health care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $172,238, $180,311 and $188,257 
respectively; 100 percent for the fiscal years 2013, 2012 and 2011. 
 
STRS Ohio issues a stand-alone financial report.  Interested parties can view the most recent Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report by visiting www.strsoh.org or by requesting a copy by calling toll-free (888) 227-7877. 
 
NOTE 13 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS  
 
A. Compensated Absences:  Vacation and sick leave accumulated by employees has been recorded by the 

College.  Upon termination of College service, a fully vested employee is entitled to 25% of their accumulated 
sick leave not to exceed 45 days for professional staff and 30 days for support staff plus all accumulated 
vacation.  At June 30, 2013, the long-term liability for vested and probable benefits for vacation and sick leave 
totaled $28,658, and the short-term liability totaled $599,663, for a total liability of $628,321. 

 
B. Insurance Benefits:  Medical/surgical, prescription drugs, and vision insurance is offered to employees 

through Medical Mutual Benefits Insurance of Ohio.  The College pays monthly premiums from the same 
funds that pay employees' salaries.  Dental insurance is provided by CoreSource Insurance Company.  The 
College provides life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment insurance to employees through 
Standard Insurance Company. 
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NOTE 13 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS – Continued 
 

C. Deferred Compensation:  College employees may participate in the Ohio Public Employees Deferred 
 Compensation Plan.  This plan was created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.  
 Participation is on a voluntary payroll deduction basis.  The plan permits deferral of compensation until future 
 years.  According to the plan, the deferred compensation is not available until termination, retirement, death 
 or an unforeseeable emergency. 
 
 Under the deferred compensation program, all plan assets are now being held in a trust arrangement for the 
 exclusive benefit of all participants and their beneficiaries as required by the Small Business Job Protection 
 Act of 1996. Under this Act, all existing deferred compensation plans were required to establish such a trust 
 arrangement by January 1, 1999.  As a result, the assets of this plan are no longer reflected in the financial 
 statements of the College. 
 
NOTE 14 - THE INN AT HOCKING COLLEGE 
 
The Inn at Hocking College (The Inn) was previously operated by the College as a full-time motel, restaurant and 
lounge that served the public.  Effective August of 2011, the College ceased operation of the motel due to renovations 
needed to enhance its quality as a learning lab for its students and a place to stay for its customers.  Effective 
December of 2011, the College closed down the food venues at The Inn except for catering functions until the 
operations could be reassessed relative to the current curriculum and direction of the Hospitality program.  Currently 
The Inn’s rooms are still closed to the public and the restaurant has been reopened with limited days and hours and a 
limited menu to allow students in the Hospitality program which includes culinary and baking to learn through this 
“living lab”.  Architects are working with the College to repurpose The Inn to best serve the College and its programs. 
 
NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors 
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.  The College has addressed these various types of risk 
and has contracted with Reed and Baur Insurance with coverage through Government Underwriters of America and 
Trident Insurance Company for liability, property, and fleet insurance.  This coverage also provides public officials 
coverage for Public Employee Dishonesty of $250,000, Money and Securities of $50,000 and Forgery & Alteration of 
$250,000.  General liability insurance is maintained in the amount of $1,000,000 for each occurrence and $3,000,000 
in the aggregate and a $50,000 deductible.  The coverage includes a separate Educators Legal Liability, Employment 
Practices, and Law Enforcement policy and is maintained with limits of liability of $1,000,000 for each occurrence and 
$1,000,000 in the aggregate and a $50,000 deductible.  The College also carries a $10,000,000 excess liability policy 
that provides coverage beyond the general liability and educators legal coverage.  Settled claims resulting from these 
risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the last three fiscal years.  There has been no 
significant change in coverage from the prior year.  
 
The College maintains fleet insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 for any one accident or loss.  The College also 
carries a $10,000,000 excess liability policy that provides coverage beyond the fleet coverage. 
 
The College maintains replacement cost insurance on buildings and contents in the amount of $103,516,856 with a 
$10,000 deductible per occurrence.  The College maintains loss of income coverage for tuition and fees, room and 
board and rental insurance in the amount of $27,040,808 per any one occurrence.  Additionally, the College has a 
special liquor liability insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 for each occurrence regarding the operations of 
the restaurant, lounge, and catering in The Inn at Hocking College as well as a separate liquor liability insurance 
policy in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence for the Rhapsody Restaurant.   
 
The College pays the State Workers’ Compensation System a premium based on a rate per each $100 of total 
salaries from the prior calender year.  This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative costs. 
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NOTE 16 - CONTINGENCIES 

Grants  
 
The College receives financial assistance from federal and state agencies in the form of grants.  The receipt of funds 
under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and 
is subject to audit by the grantor agencies.  Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability 
to the College.  However, in the opinion of management, any such disallowed claims will not have a material adverse 
effect on the overall financial position of the College at June 30, 2013. 
 
Litigation 
 
The College is a party to various legal proceedings which seek damages or injunctive relief generally incidental to its 
operations and pending projects.  The College's management is of the opinion that the ultimate disposition of various 
claims and legal proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the overall financial position of the College at 
June 30, 2013. 
 
NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC.  
 
The Hocking College Foundation Inc. was incorporated with the State of Ohio on October 21, 1992 and created for 
the purpose of operating exclusively for charitable and educational purposes in support of Hocking Technical College, 
a state institution of higher learning, authorized and existing under Chapter 3357 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
The Internal Revenue Service granted a foundation status classification under 501(a) of the IRS Regulations as an 
organization described in Section 501(c)(3), granting the Foundation tax-exempt status.  The initial five year ruling 
period ending June 30, 1997, was updated on November 6, 1997 with the IRS reaffirming the Foundation's exempt 
status under Section 501(a) as described in 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Basis of Accounting and Presentation  
 
The financial statements of the Hocking College Foundation, Inc. (hereinafter referred to as "the Foundation"), have 
been prepared on the accrual basis whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are recorded 
when they have been reduced to a legal or contractual obligation to pay. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as 
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial 
Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments, and Statement No. 35, 
Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, 
issued in June and November, 1999.  Since the Foundation is a component unit of the College, it has adopted these 
Statements. 
 
Cash and Investments 
 
All cash received by the Foundation is deposited in a central bank account.  During fiscal year 2013, investments 
were limited to certificates of deposit with local institutions, money market accounts, corporate fixed income securities, 
mutual funds, and stocks. 
 
Except for nonparticipating investment contracts, investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted 
market prices.  Nonparticipating investment contracts such as repurchase agreements and nonnegotiable certificates 
of deposit are reported at cost. 
 
For purposes of the presentation on the Statement of Net Position, investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less at the time they are purchased by the Foundation are considered to be cash equivalents. 
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NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. – Continued 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets with a unit cost of over $1,000 are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or if donated, at fair 
market value at the date of donation.  The Foundation has no significant infrastructure assets.  Depreciation is 
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset and is not allocated to the 
functional expense categories.  Expenses for construction in progress are capitalized as incurred.  Interest expense 
relating to construction is capitalized net of interest income earned on resources set aside for this purpose.  

 
Asset Description 

 Estimated 
Useful Life (Years) 

Buildings and Improvements  20-50 

 
Cash and Investments 
 
The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk as defined in GASB Statement No. 
3, "Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments (including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase 
Agreements" and GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures". 
 
Deposits:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Foundation's deposits may not be 
returned.  All deposits are collateralized with eligible securities in amounts equal to at least 105% of the carrying value 
of the deposits.  Such collateral, as permited by the Ohio Revised Code, is held in single financial institution collateral 
pools at Federal Reserve Banks, or at member banks of the federal reserve system, in the name of the respective 
depository bank and pledged as a pool of collateral against all of the public deposits it holds or as specific collateral 
held at the Federal Reserve Bank in the name of the Foundation. 
 
At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of all Foundation deposits was $548,995.  Based on the criteria described in 
GASB Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures", as of June 30, 2013, the Foundation's bank 
balance of $549,369 was either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or collateralized with pooled 
securities held by the pledging financial institution in the manner described above. 
 
Investments:  As of June 30, 2013, the Foundation had the following investments and maturities: 
 

Investment Type Fair Value Maturity

Common Stock $70,211 < 1 Year

Corporate Fixed Income 7,584 > 5 Years

Mutual Funds 127,061 < 1 Year

Money Market Funds 112,214 < 1 Year

Total $317,070
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NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. – Continued 

Interest Rate Risk:  Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates and according to 
state law, the Foundation's investment policy limits investment portfolio maturities to five years or less. 
 
Credit Risk:  Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  
The Foundation’s investment policy does not address credit risk beyond the requirements of the Ohio Revised Code.  
The credit ratings of the Foundation’s investments at June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 
 

Credit Rating (S&P) Common Stock
A1 $16,646

A2 53,565

Total $70,211

Credit Rating       
Fixed Income 

Securities

Unrated $7,584

Credit Rating Mutual Funds

Unrated $127,061

Credit Rating (S&P)
Money Market 

Funds
A $67,551
A2 44,663

Total $112,214

 
Custodial Credit Risk:  Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Foundation will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of 
an outside party.  All of the Foundation’s securitites are either insured and registered in the name of the Foundation or 
at least registered in the name of the Foundation.  The Foundation has no investment policy dealing with investment 
custodial credit risk beyond the requirements in the state statute that prohibit the payment for investments prior to the 
delivery of the securities representing such investments to the treasurer or qualified trustee.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk:  Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government’s investment in a single issuer.  The Foundation places no limit on the amount that may be invested in 
any one issuer.  The Foundation holds 48.1% of investments in common stock, 2.9% in fixed income securities, and 
49.0% in mutual funds.   
 
The classification of cash and cash equivalents, and investments in the financial statements is based on criteria set 
forth in GASB Statement No. 9, "Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-Expendable Trust Funds and 
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting”.  For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash 
and cash equivalents include investments of the cash management pool and investments with maturities of three 
months or less at the time of their purchase by the Foundation. 



HOCKING TECHNICAL COLLEGE 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

  

 -35-

NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. – Continued 

Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 

Balance at 
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions

Balance at 
June 30, 2013

Nondepreciable Captial Assets:

   Land $78,880 $0 $0 $78,880

Depreciable Capital Assets:

   Buildings and Improvements 22,963,528 0 0 22,963,528

Total Cost of Capital Assets 23,042,408 0 0 23,042,408

Less Accumulated Depreciation:

   Buildings and Improvements (1,977,081) (390,379) 0 (2,367,460)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (1,977,081) (390,379) 0 (2,367,460)

Capital Assets, Net $21,065,327 ($390,379) $0 $20,674,948

 
 
The most significant capital assets reported by the Foundation are the Hocking Residence Hall buildings.  The 
Foundation reports these buildings since they hold the title, but the operating revenue and expenses of this activity is 
reported in the College's primary government column on the financial statements.  The Foundation leases these 
buildings to the College for an amount equal to the debt payments associated with the buildings. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligations of the Foundation as of June 30, 2013: 
 

Purpose
Balance at 

July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions
Balance at 

June 30, 2013
Due Within 
One Year

Long-Term Notes Payable

  Hocking Heights Dormitory; 4.25% $121,747 $0 $121,747 $0 $0

  Student Housing; 4.00% 19,510,000 0 400,000 19,110,000 415,000

Totals $19,631,747 $0 $521,747 $19,110,000 $415,000
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NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. – Continued 

The annual requirements to amortize long-term obligations outstanding as of June 30, 2013 are as follows: 
 

Year Ended     
June 30 Principal Interest

2014 $415,000 $765,719

2015 435,000 749,182

2016 455,000 733,182

2017 480,000 712,419

2018 500,000 694,589

2019-2023 2,875,000 3,154,772

2024-2028 3,630,000 2,525,587

2029-2033 4,565,000 1,729,613

2034-2038 5,755,000 730,564

Total Payments $19,110,000 $11,795,627

Student                     
Housing

 
The Foundation’s Bonds are secured by a Trust Agreement dated as of October 24, 2006 (“Master Trust 
Agreement”), as supplemented by a First Supplemental Trust Agreement dated as of May 1, 2001 between the 
Foundation and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association, with its designated corporate trust office in New York, 
New York.  
 
Details of the series are as follows: 

 
Series 

 

Interest Rate 
 Maturity  

Fiscal Year 
 Initial Issue 

Amount 

 
Outstanding at 
June 30, 2013 

  2008  4.0%  2038  $20,800,000  $19,110,000 

 
The Foundation currently holds an interest rate swap which was entered into in an effort to hedge the interest rate risk 
associated with the issuance of the Foundation’s Series 2008 variable rate debt.  Ultimately, the Foundation expects 
that the creation of this synthetic fixed rate debt provides an interest rate that is lower than if fixed rate debt were 
issued directly.  The swap agreement is considered an effective hedge having met the consistent critical terms 
method of analysis.  The fair value of the hedging derivative instrument represents the maximum loss that would be 
recognized at the report date if all counterparties failed to perform as contracted.  The Foundation has not recorded 
the fair value of the derivative instrument on the Statement of Net Position in accordance with GASB Statement No. 
53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, as of June 30, 2013.  The total amounts paid 
relative to the swap agreement for the year ended June 30, 2013 is $436,234.  These amounts are included as an 
adjustment to interest on capital asset-related debt in the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net 
position.  
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NOTE 17 - COMPONENT UNIT DISCLOSURES - HOCKING COLLEGE FOUNDATION, INC. – Continued 
 

 
Effective date Type Objective 

Notional 
Amount 

Pay 

Terms 

Receive 

Terms Maturity date 
Counter-party 
credit rating 

  July 1, 2008 

Pay - fixed, 
Receive - 
variable 

Cash flow 
hedge for 

Series 2008 
bonds 

$13,461,000 
(amortizing) 

3.525% 
fixed 

USD-
LIBOR-

BBA July 1, 2013 Aa1 

 
The interest rate swap is subject to the following risks: 
 
Credit risk The Foundation is exposed to credit risk which is the risk associated with the inability of the counterparty to 
meet the terms of the agreement.  The Foundation has decided that this is a reasonable level of risk given the 
potential exposure and the relatively small notional amount as compared to its total outstanding debt.   
 
The counterparty is rated Aa1. 
 
Interest rate risk The Foundation is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest rate swap as the Securities Industry 
and Financial Markets Association (LIBOR) index decreases, the Foundation’s net payment on the swap increases.  
 
Basis risk The Foundation is exposed to basis risk due to variable-rate payments received by the College on these 
instruments based on a rate or index other than interest rates the Foundation pays on its variable-rate debt, which is 
remarketed every 30 days.  As of June 30, 2013, the weighted-average interest rate on the Foundation’s hedged 
variable-rate debt is 0.47 percent, while the LIBOR swap index rate is 0.25 percent.   
 
Terminiation risk The Foundation or its counterparties may terminate a derivative instrument if the other party fails to 
perform under the terms of the contract.   
 

NOTE 18 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

In July 2013, the College purchased two student residence buildings from the Foundation for $19,110,000.  The 
College issued general obligation bonds in the amount of $20,995,000 at a rate of 4.716% to finance the purchase of 
the buildings and to pay for additional improvement projects on campus. 
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FEDERAL GRANTOR Federal
Pass-Through Grantor Grant CFDA

Program Title Year Number Revenues Expenditures______________________________________________________ _________ ___________ ____________ ____________

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Pass-Through State Department of Education:
Child and Adult Care Food Program 2013 10.558 $5,152 $5,152____________ ____________
Total United States Department of Agriculture 5,152 5,152

NATIONAL SCIENCE FOUNDATION
Pass-Through Stark State Community College
Education and Human Resources 2013 47.076 2,345 2,345
Pass-Through University of Toledo
Education and Human Resources 2012 47.076 12,568 12,568____________ ____________
Total National Science Foundation 14,913 14,913

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Direct from Federal Government:
Student Financial Assistance Cluster:
    Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grants 2013 84.007 212,564 212,564
    Federal Work-Study Program 2013 84.033 231,084 231,084
    Federal Pell Grant Program 2012-2013 84.063 13,386,621 13,386,621
    Federal Direct Student Loans 2013 84.268 27,180,679 27,180,679____________ ____________
Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster 41,010,948 41,010,948

TRIO Cluster:
TRIO - Student Support Services 2012-2013 84.042A 309,251 309,251
TRIO - Talent Search 2012-2013 84.044A 223,570 223,570
Total TRIO Cluster 532,821 532,821

Pass-Through State Department of Education:
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 2012-2013 84.048 195,084 195,084
Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 2013 84.048 17,003 17,003
Total Career and Technical Education - Basic Grants to States 212,087 212,087

____________ ____________
Total United States Department of Education 41,755,856 41,755,856

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Direct from Federal Government:
FEMA 2013 97.036 42,602 42,602____________ ____________
Total United States Department of Homeland Security 42,602 42,602

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Pass-Through State Department of Health and Human Services:
Step Up to Quality (Early Learning Center) 2013 93.575 11,000 5,191____________ ____________
Total United States Department of Health and Human Services 11,000 5,191

Total Federal Financial Assistance $41,829,523 $41,823,714____________ ________________________ ____________

The accompanying notes to the Schedule of Federal Awards Revenues and Expenditures are an integral part of the Schedule.
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NOTE 1 – Basis of Accounting 
The College prepares its Schedule of Federal Awards Revenues and Expenditures (the Schedule) on the 
accrual basis of accounting.  The information in the Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements 
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. 

 
NOTE 2 – Federal Direct Loan Program 

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the College processed $27,180,679 of new loans under the 
Federal Direct Loan Program, CFDA #84.268.  The College is responsible only for certain administrative duties 
with respect to federal guaranteed student loan programs.  

 
NOTE 3 – Child and Adult Food Care Program 

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule of Federal Awards Revenues and Expenditures at the fair 
market value of the commodities received and disbursed.  Monies are commingled with state grants.  It is 
assumed that federal monies are expended first.  At June 30, 2013, the College had no significant food 
commodities in inventory.   
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Hocking Technical College
3301 Hocking Parkway
Nelsonville, Ohio  45764

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type 
activities and the discretely presented component unit of Hocking Technical College, Athens County, (the 
College) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the College’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 26, 2013, wherein we noted the College adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and 
Liabilities.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of 
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe 
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
  
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Natalie Millhuff-Stang, CPA
President/Owner
Millhuff-Stang, CPA, Inc.

December 26, 2013
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Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Required by OMB Circular A-133

Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Trustees
Hocking Technical College
3301 Hocking Parkway
Nelsonville, Ohio  45764

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Hocking Technical College’s, Athens County, (the College) compliance with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a 
direct and material effect on the College’s major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2013.  The 
College’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.  

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the College’s major federal program based on 
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, 
and Non-Profit Organizations.  Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the College’s compliance 
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major federal 
program.  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the College’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year 
ended June 30, 2013.
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Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above.  In planning and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the College’s internal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of internal control over compliance.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the College’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis.  A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB 
Circular A-133.  Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Natalie Millhuff-Stang, CPA
President/Owner
Millhuff-Stang, CPA, Inc.

December 26, 2013
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Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of financial statement opinion: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses?

None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major program(s):

Material weakness(es) identified? No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses?

None reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

Any auditing findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133?

No

Identification of major program(s): Student Financial Assistance
Cluster:  Federal Supplemental 
Educational Opportunity Grants 
(CFDA 84.007), Federal Work-
Study Program (CFDA 84.033), 
Federal Pell Grant Program (CFDA 
84.063), Federal Direct Student
Loans (CFDA 84.268)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: Type A: >$1,254,711
Type B: all others

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes

Section II – Financial Statement Findings

None

Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None
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